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The purpose of RHASS is to

support and encourage the best

of agriculture, communicate and
bring to life its value, as well as

developing a great appreciation
of the impact of agriculture

on everyday life. We achieve

this through our work with our
members and stakeholders.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REPORT

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REPORT
SECURING THE SUSTAINABILITY OF RHASS

---

£65m
THE ECONOMIC
IMPACT OF THE
ROYAL HIGHLAND
SHOW TO THE UK
---

Alan Laidlaw, RHASS Chief Executive

As a charity, the work RHASS undertakes
on behalf of the food, farming and rural
industry is significant. Decisions taken
by Directors to support individuals,
initiatives or collaborations have
far-reaching benefits for our sector
and build on generations of support
provided by the Society.
Steering the future of RHASS in times of
great change and uncertainty comes with
responsibilities. Since 1784 bold decisions
taken by far sighted Directors have served
the RHASS well. However, as a result of
uncertainty and planning restrictions
leading to a sustained period of underinvestment in the site, the time had come
for the Society to grasp the nettle to put our
land assets on a firm footing.

My role as Chief Executive is to ensure the
financial viability of the Charity and I am
focused on working in partnership with
Directors and members to ensure every
pound spent will fuel our focus on innovation,
education, heritage and sustainability.
As I reflect on my first year as Chief Executive I
can say that I have seen first-hand, from both
sides of the fence, the dedication and passion
it takes to deliver our flagship event the Royal
Highland Show. The Show is without doubt a
celebration of the value we place in what we
do, and what we enjoy. This makes it all the
more important that we reaffirm our financial
position. By continuing to make prudent
decisions we can invest in our members, the
Show, and our wider charitable remit.

One such decision is the leasing of land on
the fringes of the site for the development
of a Moxy Hotel, part of the IKEA group. This
deal will provide revenue to the Society over
a period thereby providing enabling finance
to allow us to forge ahead with investment in
other areas of the showground.

Next year we will focus on improving the
facilities further and continue investing in
our people and the digital infrastructure of
the Society – ensuring we are ready and
able for the changing demands put upon
us in the future. Technology will inevitably
bring us closer, but nothing quite as close as
spending time amongst friends, members,
6,000 livestock and enjoying four days of
good business in June.

Sponsorship and membership, both
important revenue streams, continued to
grow this year and while the financial reports
may show a healthy surplus, this is mainly
due to changes in how the Charity reports its
accounts rather than a cash injection.

Alan Laidlaw, RHASS Chief Executive

1. Source: Economic Impact Survey 2017 - Lowland Market Research on behalf of Royal Highland Show

This year’s Show proved
another record-breaking
year at the turnstiles. Visitor
numbers hit 190,028, over
£8m was spent on site
over the four days and the
wider economic impact to
Edinburgh, Scotland and the
UK is calculated at £65m.

Captain James Anderson

INVESTMENT

IMAGE: 2017 Royal Highland Show at Ingliston
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RECOMMITTED TO THE FUTURE
Building on last year’s work, significant infrastructure investment
continued in both the Showground and the Royal Highland Centre.
The aim of this investment is to create enabling finance, ensuring
RHASS remains a sustainable organisation capable of delivering
its charitable aims over many years to come.

CREATING A SUSTAINABLE CHARITY

22-25 JUNE

INCOME FROM RHASS
LAND ASSETS, MEMBERSHIP
AND INVESTMENTS

INCOME FROM THE
THE ROYAL HIGHLAND
SHOW IN 2017

INCOME FROM ROYAL
HIGHLAND CENTRE
LTD EVENTS

£1.98M

£4.45M

£1.6M

TOTAL INCOME: £8.03M

CHARITABLE
REMIT
INVESTMENT IN OUR
CORE FUNCTIONS
OF PROMOTING
FOOD, FARMING
AND RURAL LIFE.

INVESTED
IN THE
SHOWGROUND

REINVESTED
IN THE ROYAL
HIGHLAND SHOW

INVESTED IN
EDUCATION
AND GRANTS

MAKING SURE
OUR GREATEST
ASSET REMAINS
A SAFE AND
WELCOMING PLACE
FOR VISITORS.

INNOVATION AND
IMPROVEMENTS
TO ENSURE THE
EVENT REMAINS A
SHOWCASE FOR
SCOTLAND.

FUNDS RHET TO
DELIVER LEARNING
FOR YOUNG PEOPLE
AND GRANTS FOR
WORTHWHILE
PROJECTS.

TOTAL EXPENDITURE: £8.27M
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INVESTMENT

GRANTS AWARDED

The Society’s investments are managed to ensure
there are sufficient funds to support innovation
and excellence. During the 2016-17 year, awards of
£193,125 were awarded. A breakdown is outlined
below. An additional £166,137 in prize money was
presented at the Royal Highland Show.

EDUCATION

SHOW SPONSORSHIP

As a grant making institution, RHASS must seek
to ensure that it has the necessary funding. A
key source of income is generated by the Royal
Highland Show. In 2017, we raised a record £455,000
in sponsorship in addition to Gift in Kind support
estimated at £65.000.
The Show has built a hugely successful sponsorship
programme, with many companies and individuals
continuing to sponsor the event and its varied
programme for a great number of years. From
livestock to show jumping, from the Clydesdales to
the Cookery Theatre, the RHET Discovery Zone and
much more, the Show offers sponsors an unrivalled
opportunity to showcase their brand and provides
a platform on which to promote their business, build
customer loyalty and network with new clients over
four days of the best of Scotland’s food, farming
and rural life.

Total sponsorship £455,000
Gift in kind support £65,000 (Estimated)
55.3% returning for at least a 3rd year
More than 10% of 2017 sponsors
have supported for over 5 years
1 in 10 sponsors have supported for
over 5 years, RBS has been a partner
of the RHS for 37 years (since 1981)

AWARDED TO

£ / 2017

£ / 2016

Royal Highland
Education Trust

150,656

241,113

Royal Highland Education
Trust – Countryside Initiatives

5,000

7,290

LANTRA

2,042

500

Nuffield Scholarship

-

6,000

Chairman’s Award

-

1,000

Glasgow and Edinburgh
Veterinary Schools

6,000

-

Academic Achievement
Medals

1,329

2,278

£ / 2017

£ / 2016

-

1,000

SCIENCE
AWARDED TO
Moredun

CULTURE & CITIZENSHIP
AWARDED TO

£ / 2017

£ / 2016

RSABI

14,000

15,000

Grant to attend RASC
Next Generation Mission
in South Africa

2,538

-

Bursary to attend
Commonwealth Agricultural
Conference, Singapore

-

2,000

Oxford Farming Conference

885

-

Scottish Farriery Teams

2,000

2,600

Long Service Certificates
and Ploughing Medals

6,325

4,113

Scottish Shearing
Circuit Committee

1,100

8,000

Miscellaneous

1,250

1,200

193,125

292,094

TOTAL

INVESTMENT
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Moxy Hotel ground breaking RHASS Directors Bill Gray (L)
& Andrew Hornall (R) & Chief Executive Alan Laidlaw

Sir William Young award winner Dr Robert Graham with RHASS
Directors Anne Logan and past Chairman Keith Brooke

“Royal Bank of Scotland encourages
colleagues to volunteer at the Royal
Highland Show. In 2017, more than 150 people
volunteer one or more days. Our main work
surrounds the role of Gate Ambassadors
where we meet and greet visitors, give them
literature to help them make the most of
their visit, and act as a first point of contact
for information about facilities.”
Roddy McLean, Director of Agriculture
RBS and 2017 volunteer

178th ROYAL HIGHLAND SHOW 2017

190,028

+6%

RECORD NUMBERS
OF VISITORS FOR THE
FOURTH YEAR RUNNING

+ 6% TICKETS ON LAST YEAR
WITH 56% BOUGHT
IN ADVANCE

28,982

£8M

OVER 28,982 CHILDREN
ATTENDED FOR FREE

£8M INVESTED IN
SHOPPING AT THE EVENT

2,000

1,100

408

SHEEP

CATTLE

HEAVY HORSES

22-25 JUNE
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INVESTMENT

Infrastructure investment and
an all-new South Arena
This is an exciting time as the Society
forges ahead with an ambitious investment
programme in the Royal Highland Centre.
The Centre is Scotland’s largest indoor and
outdoor facility, with over 18,000m² covered
exhibition space, a substantial outdoor
area including 110-acres of parkland, a main
arena, track area, countryside area, and
parking for 20,000 vehicles.
The site is a blank canvas for performing
artists and event organisers and investment
is already paying dividends. This year, the
RHC has provided over £1.6m in income for
the Society. The vision is to make it the best
outdoor event space in Scotland and open
up the facilities to new markets and events.
The newly-formed South Arena, formally
launched in June as part of our investment
programme, saw chart-topping girl band Little
Mix play to a crowd of 15,000 less than a week
after the Royal Highland Show.

Enhanced show jumping
Several signature jumps were created this
year to enhance the already very successful
show jumping section. The designs were
chosen to represent iconic symbols from
Scotland’s heritage including, the Forth Rail
Bridge, the Wallace Monument, a Highland
cow and Aberdeen Angus. The jumps
enhance the ground for spectators and
competitors alike, and the riders and horses
certainly found them challenging.

Ingliston land used to
build new hotel
Vastint Hospitality, part of the IKEA group, is
building a new Moxy Hotel on Eastfield Road
at Ingliston. These facilities will increase local
accommodation available for visitors to the
Show and will also enhance the offerings
available to visitors to the RHC. This deal will
provide stable revenue for the Society over a
period of many years.

GRANTS AND AWARDS
This year also saw significant investment
in people through the grants programme.
RHASS remains strongly committed to
offering individuals ways to advance their
skills and understanding.

RHASS Alumni Ambassadors
Programme
This year the growing number of RHASS
alumni, who have previously benefited from
one of the Society’s many awards, were
invited to Ingliston House. The event provided
an opportunity to network and discuss how
participants have benefited from Society
support, and what more they feel could be
done to influence the future success of rural
industries in Scotland. More inspiring and
thought-provoking events are planned for
2018 to enable alumni to be more involved in
the future work of the Society.

Long service awards
These awards recognise the achievements
and performances of individuals who have
dedicated their lives to the industry. In 2017,
76 awards were presented in recognition
of their long service and outstanding
contribution to our sector.

INVESTMENT
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Nuffield Scholarship
“RHASS’ co-sponsorship of my Nuffield
Scholarship has allowed me to really
explore the opportunities and means for
extending our cherry season in Scotland.
I look forward to taking this learning and
applying it to my work in the fruit industry,
and ideally I would like to encourage
other growers to diversify into cherries to
give our fledgling industry a critical mass.”
Jan Redpath, Nuffield Scholar
RHASS Alumni – recipients of RHASS awards & grants
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EDUCATION

HELPING THE NEXT
GENERATION DEVELOP A
DEEPER UNDERSTANDING

Here are some of the new and relevant ways in which
we are fostering a greater understanding of Scotland’s
land-based industries. From literally bringing the
curriculum to life with ‘Grow your own loaf’, to helping
talented young people develop their skills and ideas.

Learning from other countries
Jenny McKerr from Lanarkshire was selected
for a RHASS sponsored study tour to South
Africa hosted by the Royal Agricultural Society
of the Commonwealth (RASC).

Skill succession
This year, over 1,000 tickets were awarded to
up-and-coming young handlers to support
and encourage the art and skill required to
present an animal at the levels required.
Laura Green from Corskie Farm in
Morayshire, home to the famous Corskie
herd of pedigree Simmentals is 21 and has
been involved in the young handler class at
the Show for many years. She explains the
importance of the pathway for furthering
her skills and experience.

“It’s so important to encourage and educate
the younger generations in showmanship.
It helps them improve their skills, meet new
people and gain valuable knowledge in
working at a high standard.”

“I wanted to learn about agriculture in a
country with different challenges. All of the
farmers we visited lived through Apartheid.
This background has shaped their positive
outlook. The South African farmers inspired
me to look for the solutions, find people to
work with in the supply chain with common
values, get the basics right and most
importantly, make a start – a lot can evolve
from 4 cows.”

Laura Green,
Corskie Farm, Morayshire

Jenny McKerr,
Forth Mains Farm Lanarkshire

EDUCATION

World Shearing teams
go to New Zealand
Grants awarded to Scotland’s shearing teams
have allowed them to represent Scotland
in the Six Nations and travel to the Golden
Shears World Championships in New Zealand.
These provide valuable learning experiences
for shearers at all levels, as well as an
opportunity to make connections with fellow
shearers from farms around the world.

Equipping apprentice farriers
RHASS supports the apprentices within the
Scottish farrier team to cover the costs
of travel to the National and International
competitions. This allows them to compete
alongside and learn from the Master
Team who lifted the international Team
Horseshoeing Championships for the third
year in a row. Further investment was also
made to the forge as a training location on
the Ingliston site.
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Improving business skills
‘Finding a better way to use the resources
we have at home’, is just one of the reasons
given by a young farmer for attending this
year’s inaugural SAYFC ‘Cultivating Leaders’
programme. RHASS sponsored two members
to attend the course which brings experts in
the industry together to pass on some of their
wisdom and knowledge to the next generation.
Topics as diverse as structuring the business,
grasping market opportunity and writing a
business plan are covered, alongside such
issues as managing communications and
pension planning.

Creating a more food
literate society
The Royal Highland Education Trust (RHET) is
an educational charity created and partly
grant-funded by RHASS. The aim of the charity
is to create a more food-literate society. In 2017,
over 500 people volunteered almost 150,000
hours of their time in fields, classrooms, on
governance and at the Show to give school
children and young people a closer look at
the opportunities and challenges of farming
and food production. Using the Scottish
Government’s cost-equivalent for volunteers,
this equates to over £1.7m worth of time.
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INNOVATION

RECOGNISING THE SCOTTISH TRADITION OF
INNOVATION. RHASS CONTINUES TO PLAY
A SUPPORTING AND INFLUENTIAL ROLE IN
PROMOTING INNOVATION WITHIN THE INDUSTRY.

From recognising brilliant technical thinking,
to finding creatively engaging ways of
bringing the working countryside to life for
young people.

Technical innovation heavyweights
Over 1,900 livestock and equine exhibitors
prepared 6,000 animals to exacting
standards at this year’s Show while 1,100
trade exhibitors presented the very
latest innovations in equipment, goods
and services. Both Houghton-Parkhouse
and Kverneland picked up coveted Gold
Technical Innovation Awards, with a
further four silvers and two certifications of
commendation awarded. Taking an idea
from the farm workshop or test bench and
bringing it to fruition takes exceptional work
and commitment. The Society is proud
to acknowledge Scotland’s tradition of
technical innovation.

Widening access to animal
health research
RHASS members will now be eligible
to become Associate Members of the
Moredun Research Institute as an additional
membership benefit. This partnership
gives RHASS members access to the very
latest livestock health research and online
webinars. In addition, members will also be
able to apply for The Moredun Foundation
(TMF) Award Scheme which provides funding
for travel or personal projects with the aim
of improving education and experience in
livestock health and welfare.

Creative engagement
In a new partnership with Edinburgh
Trams, RHET produced a highly engaging
tram bingo game designed to encourage
young people and families to explore the
showground and play, with the chance
to win an ipad. As one happy visitor
commented: “The Tram Trail was a great
incentive to get the kids moving on to the
next thing and pushed us into parts of the
Show we don’t usually visit.”

Championing the rural voice
Glasgow’s Poet Laureate Jim Carruth brought
his farm-inspired poetry to the Showground.
Jim grew up on the family dairy farm in
Bridge of Weir and his poetry champions the
rural voice. He became the Show’s first ever
Poet-In-Residence.

Engaging on digital platforms
Digital channels play an ever-increasing
role in communicating with stakeholders.
Significant investment in creating three
new websites and developing social
channels will help to ensure the Society is
able to effectively drive awareness and
understanding of its role in food, farming
and rural life.

INNOVATION
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RHASS & Moredun Collaboration

Joe Bell and Kenny Wilson from Kverneland Group
UK RHASS Technical Innovation Award winners

Trampede – RHASS Collaborates with Edinburgh Trams
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HERITAGE

CHAMPIONING SCOTTISH
LIVESTOCK AND RURAL LIFE.
SINCE 1784, THE SOCIETY
HAS BEEN THE RESPECTED
STANDARD-BEARER FOR BREED
EXCELLENCE AND A RECORDKEEPER OF RURAL LIFE.
During 2017, a number of activities turned
the spotlight on native Scottish breeds, and
the role farming and rural industry plays in
Scotland’s success.

Welcoming the World Angus
Forum to home soil
Aberdeen Angus has to be one of Scotland’s
most successful export brands. So, it was
with great pride that we welcomed the
return of The World Angus Forum to the
breed’s UK homeland for the first time in
40 years. Not only was the sight of over
150 magnificent beasts a truly marvellous
spectacle to behold, but it is also a tangible
example of the value of Scottish genetics
and livestock knowledge when it is shared
and transferred.

Greater access to Scotland’s
agricultural history
The Society’s 6,000 book stock and archive
is being digitally catalogued to make
it accessible to all. The project is only a
quarter of the way through and already
a number of historically interesting
discoveries have emerged.
Who knew that the Society helped establish
the first Gaelic dictionary to preserve the
Highland language and way of life in 1825?
Or that RHASS led an influential campaign
in the early 1800s for the standardisation
of weights and measures in Scotland?
Following on from recent work to digitise all
the historical transactions of the Society,
work began this year on an online catalogue
of the book stock. In time, over 2,100 historical
photographs, slide material and other
archive items will be added to the website.

Correspondence regarding the setting up
of the Royal Dick Veterinary School has been
found, alongside records of the first Gaelic
dictionary. The long-term aim is to make the
Society’s vast record of Scottish agricultural
history digitally accessible.
The Society is always delighted to receive
requests for information from the wide range
of archives we hold in Ingliston House. To
browse the archive and library catalogue
visit www.rhass.org.uk.

AMW Pollock. Doing business
across the decades.
For regular attendees at the Royal Highland
Show, the name AMW Pollock will be a
familiar name. Little wonder when, after
a recent request to explore transaction
records, it transpired that the family has
had a continuous presence at the Show
for the last 140 years. Photographs of the
firm’s stand over the years provide us with a
fascinating insight into farming history.

Commemorating the
centenary of WWI
To mark 100 years since the Women’s
Land Army (WLA) was founded, and to
commemorate the centenary of WWI, the
Royal Highland Show featured an exhibition
highlighting Scottish women’s farming war
effort. Visitors could see cereal crops and
vegetables typically grown on farms and
garden plots during wartime. Information
boards were created by pupils from
Greyfriars R C Primary School in St Andrews.

HERITAGE

RHASS archives available online
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AMW Pollock – 140 years at RHS

20 | RHASS ANNUAL REPORT 2018

SUSTAINABILITY

PROTECTING LIVELIHOODS. THE ROYAL
HIGHLAND SHOW IS UNDOUBTEDLY THE
MOST VISIBLE MANIFESTATION OF THE
SOCIETY’S SUPPORT FOR THE VERY BEST
STANDARDS IN AGRICULTURE, FORESTRY
AND STEWARDSHIP OF THE COUNTRYSIDE.

Here are some of the other ways in which we
foster wider thinking around sustainability.

The 178th Royal Highland Show.
A prime opportunity for all.
This year’s Royal Highland Show brought
record numbers of visitors. The event is
a showcase, a launch-pad, a learning
experience, a reunion, and a meeting place
for the many organisations with which
RHASS are actively involved. Above all it’s an
opportunity to gain a greater understanding
of the enormous contribution agriculture
makes to our daily lives.
Now in its 178th year the Show’s success
shows no signs of slowing down with over
190,000 visitors attending - an increase for
the fourth year running.

Celebrating dairy diversity
Few events can promise the combined
excitement of mega machines, a one tonne
British Charolais, and the chance to taste
nearly every cheese in Scotland. Over 120
exhibitors took part in Scotland’s Larder Live,
showcasing the best produce from across
Scotland. The national cheese, butter and
ice-cream championships were joined
this year by the inaugural Scottish Bread
Championships. Each of these competitions is
designed to showcase the passion and craft
of proud and principled producers who care.

Farmers encouraged to
think about forestry
The introduction of woodland to farmland
can provide a number of benefits, including
providing on-farm timber, improving shelter
for livestock, or bringing underutilised ground
into productive use for secure long-term
incomes. Forestry is a hugely important
sector and a number of initiatives this year
have helped to promote grants which can
enhance the environment and reduce costs
for farmers considering diversifying their
existing business.

SUSTAINABILITY
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Recognising the value of all shows
The Scottish Agricultural Shows’ Forum conducted
research during 2017 with show organisers in 23 of
32 local authority areas. Part-funded by RHASS, the
results highlight the value of smaller agricultural
shows in promoting interest and participation in
rural life. Recent Scottish Agricultural Shows’ Forum
research highlights the importance of shows of all
sizes to rural communities across Scotland.
PERCENTAGE OF AGRICULTURAL
SHOWS IN SCOTLAND BY MONTH
April

5%

May

13%

June

14%

July

25%

August

41%

November

2%

TOTAL ANNUAL VISITOR NUMBERS TO
AGRICULTURAL SHOWS IN SCOTLAND
Up to 1,000

33%

1,001 – 5,000

40%

5,001 – 10,000

15%

10,001 – 20,000

6%

20,001 – 30,000

4%

30,000+

2%
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CHAIRMAN’S REPORT

CHAIRMAN’S REPORT
MEMBERS NEED ALL REGIONS AND
GENERATIONS TO HAVE A VOICE

I am delighted to report on another
successful year and would like to thank our
previous Chairman, Keith Brooke, for his
hard work and dedication. RHASS benefitted
hugely from Keith’s input and I take over the
role with great honour.
This year has been one of significant
investment in the Royal Highland Centre.
RHASS’ Directors have voted overwhelmingly
to continue the vision of creating a
world-class events space. With the £7m
infrastructure project well underway and
the South Arena completed, this ambition is
being realised. I am pleased to say we are
reaping the rewards of this investment by
attracting major live music acts, with the
inaugural concert by pop band Little Mix a
notable success.
Into next year, we will continue to shore
up our assets following years of under
investment in the site to allow us to continue
to maximise the value from our land assets.
I am proud to be part of the Directorship
that is taking the necessary bold steps to
secure the sustainable future of the Charity.
With this spending comes greater certainty
in our future income streams, allowing us to
fulfil our charitable remit around education,
innovation, heritage, sustainability and
enabling us to deliver a world class Show.
I am passionate about attracting new
directors to the Society, directors with
expertise in finance, land management and
all aspects of farming to help us remain
forward-looking and representative of our
industry. The Society was established so
that all regions could have a voice. We must
make it easier for members who are busy
running their own successful businesses
in every corner and pocket of Scotland to
contribute. It’s here we can turn technology
to our advantage and I look forward to
exploring this changing landscape and
welcoming more views.

Chairman Jimmy Warnock

This year the Society also found new ways
to give younger voices a platform. Through
our ongoing association with SAYFC, we
brought a lively panel debate to this year’s
Show on the topic ‘Life after Brexit’, attracting
80 young farmers. I strongly suspect
these conversations weren’t limited to the
duration of the event.
During 2017, RHET reached a staggering
77,562 young people and adults. Now thanks
to a newly revamped website, teachers
and volunteers have their own dedicated
pages and schools can book a farm visit or
classroom talk from a farmer online.
Scottish agriculture and rural business has
proven incredibly resilient and innovative
over the centuries and I am in no doubt
that this will continue and we will go from
strength to strength.

Jimmy Warnock
RHASS Chairman

CHAIRMAN’S REPORT
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Chairman Jimmy Warnock
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REPORT OF THE TRUSTEES
The Trustees of The Royal Highland & Agricultural
Society of Scotland present their annual report for
the year ended 30 November 2017.
The Financial Statements have been prepared in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in
note 1 to the financial statements and comply with
the Charity’s trust deed, the Charities and Trustee
Investment (Scotland) Act 2005, the Charities
Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended)
and Accounting and Reporting by Charities:
Statement of Recommended Practice applicable
to charities preparing their financial statements in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
application in the UK and Republic of Ireland
published on 16 July 2014.

Once elected in line with the constitution and
OSCR’s requirements, Directors are provided with a
comprehensive induction pack which includes the
Royal Charter and Bye-laws, up-to-date information
about the activities of the Society and an outline of
the role, responsibilities and liabilities of Directors,
and the remit of any subcommittees.
Each year, prior to commencing their directorship
term, new and existing Directors are invited to an
induction at Ingliston House. This gives the Directors
an opportunity to meet with the Executive team and
RHASS management.
A formal presentation reinforces the information
provided by the induction pack. During their term,
Directors are also required to undertake relevant
Health & Safety training.

Reference and Administrative
Information

Organisational Management

The Society, founded in 1784, is registered with the
Office of the Scottish Charity Regulator (OSCR)
under Scottish Charity Number SC004561. The
Trustees and Officers are listed on page 30 as is
the Society’s principal address and those of the
Society’s professional advisers.

The Trustees of the Charity are legally responsible for
the overall management and control of the Society
and meet at least eight times a year. The work of
implementing most of their policies is carried out by
the Members of the Standing Committees, who meet
regularly throughout the year.

Structure, Governance
and Management
Governing Document
The Royal Highland and Agricultural Society of
Scotland is a Society constituted by Royal Charter
dating from 1784, last amended in 2012. The Royal
Charter is supplemented by the Bye-Laws, last
amended in 2012.

Governing Bodies
The Directors are the Trustees of the Society and
are elected by the Society’s membership, as are the
President and Vice-Presidents at the Annual General
Meeting of Members, last held in March 2017. As a
body, the Directors represent a membership of over
16,000. The qualifications required for election and the
rules governing the procedures for both Members
and Directors are contained in the Society’s Royal
Charter and Bye-Laws.
The Board is comprised of up to 59 Directors, all are
Charity Trustees and all are equally responsible for
the management of the Charity, regardless of title.

Recruitment and Training of Directors
Vacancies on the Board are advertised annually to
Members. Procedures for election are stated within
the Royal Charter and Bye-Laws.

The Executive Committee, of up to eight Directors,
is made up of the Chairman, Immediate Past
Chairman/Chairman Designate, Honorary Secretary,
Honorary Treasurer, up to four Directors (elected by
the Board to serve a three-year term), advised by
the Chief Executive. The Executive Committee meet
around eleven times per year and may appoint
external specialist advisers on an annual basis.
There are five other Standing Committees, these are:
1.

The Finance Committee, chaired by the
Honorary Treasurer, AJ Murray

2. The Public Relations and Education Committee,
chaired by WF Arnot
3. The Development and General Purposes
Committee, chaired by N Thomson
4. The Risk Management, Health & Safety
Committee, chaired by the Chairman, JF
Warnock
5. The Office Bearers Committee, chaired by the
Chairman, JF Warnock
The Chairman of each of these Standing
Committees reports to the Board of Directors,
making recommendations to the Board for approval.
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Key Management Personnel Remuneration

Training for Directors and staff

The Trustees consider the Board of Trustees, the Chief
Executive, the Finance Manager and the Society
Secretary as comprising the key management
personnel of the Charity in charge of directing and
controlling the Charity and running and operating
the Charity on a day to day basis. All Trustees give
of their time freely and no Trustee remuneration
was paid in 2016-17. Details of Trustee expenses and
related party transactions are disclosed in note 15.

Through the risk management processes
established for the Society, the Board of Directors
is satisfied that the major risks identified have been
adequately mitigated. The risk register is revisited at
regular intervals throughout the year and updated
as necessary.

The pay of the Society’s Chief Executive, the Finance
Manager and the Society Secretary is reviewed
annually and normally increased with reference
to average earnings. Key Management Personnel
remuneration is disclosed in note 14 to the accounts

Group Structure and Relationships

Reserves Policy
The Society has considered the reserves required
and has taken into account its current and future
liabilities. In line with OSCR Guidance that a charity
should maintain adequate reserves to ensure its
ability to deliver its charitable objectives, the Society
holds unrestricted designated reserves for two
purposes which are set out in note 22. These reserves
are summarised as follows:

The Society has a wholly owned subsidiary, Highland
Centre Ltd. The activities of this company are
consolidated with those of the Society.

•

Paintings restoration fund of £5,125 representing
funds held for the restoration of paintings and
other ephemera held by the Society

The Royal Highland Society Development Trust
has also been consolidated within these financial
statements as it is controlled by the Society.

•

Stockmen’s facility fund of £90,000 for
future capital expenditure for stockmen’s
accommodation or facilities

The activities of the Royal Highland Education Trust, a
charity with a separate board of trustees whose sole
member is the Society, are not consolidated, on the
basis of materiality, in these financial statements.
The Roy Watherston Memorial Trust and the Royal
Agricultural Society of the Commonwealth, both
of which have separate boards of trustees, are
administered by the Society and not consolidated
within these financial Statements.

Risk Management
The Board of Directors is responsible for the
management of the risks faced by the Society.
Detailed considerations of risks are delegated to the
relative Committees assisted by the Chief Executive
and his management team. Risks are identified,
assessed and controls established and kept under
review throughout the year.
The key risk controls used by the Society include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Formal agendas and minutes for all Committee
and Board activity
Detailed terms of reference for all Committees
Comprehensive strategic planning, budgeting
and management accounting

Business Risk Register reviewed on a quarterly basis
Established organisational structure and lines of
reporting
Clear authorisation and approval levels
Health and safety audits and reports

Vetting procedures required by law for the
protection of the vulnerable

The balance on unrestricted reserves after the
above designations is £18,358,494. This will provide
working capital for the Society and Highland Centre
Ltd, its trading subsidiary. This is considered sufficient
to satisfy the Society’s policy of holding sufficient
reserves to fund the cost of at least three months of
the Society’s activities.

Objectives and Activities
The Society’s Royal Charter and Bye-Laws define its
name, objectives, powers, constitution and system of
election of Directors, in addition to defining their duties
and those of the Society’s staff. Its objectives are
defined in Clause 2 of the Royal Charter as follows:
1.

The advancement of education

2. The advancement of citizenship and
community development
3. The advancement of heritage, culture and
science
4. The advancement of environmental protection
and improvement
5. The advancement of animal welfare
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Review of achievements
and performance
Ever mindful of the need to create a sustainable
source of funding to support its charitable objectives,
the Society is pleased to note the strength of
performances linked to the following key aims.
Creatively advance the interests and priorities of
rural communities and land-based industries
The Society is committed to promoting and
protecting the interests of our Members. It does this
in numerous ways including:
The Royal Highland Show - a showcase for the best in
farming, food & rural life.
At the record-breaking 2017 show, the Society
welcomed over 190,000 visitors including numerous
politicians, industry leaders, media and key
influencers all of whom experienced first-hand the
vibrancy of rural Scotland.
Stakeholder engagement – RHASS Directors and staff
attend numerous events, debates and conferences
throughout the year to ensure our Members’ views
and interests are represented. This includes the
Oxford Farming Conference, NFUS Annual General
Meeting, the National Council of Rural Advisers and
various agricultural shows throughout the UK.
The Society’s Directors and management team
are represented on various industry groups
including the SAYFC, Royal Agricultural Society of the
Commonwealth, Royal Highland Education Trust, the
Council for Awards of Royal Agricultural Societies
(CARAS), the National Council of Rural Advisers and
many others. Furthermore, the Society supports a
number of sector organisations including the Nuffield
Farming Scholarships Trust, the Moredun Foundation
and the National Rural Mental Health Forum.
In the year under review, RHASS and RHET were
represented on the Agriculture Champions working
group, set up by Fergus Ewing, Cabinet Secretary for
Rural Economy and Connectivity. This group was set
up to explore ways that the government, industry
and stakeholders could work together for the benefit
of all, given scale of challenges facing the industry.
This group is ongoing and final recommendations
are due in Spring 2018.
Disseminate knowledge of agriculture and allied
industries to farmers and the community at
large by supporting courses of study, awarding
certificates or scholarships, nurturing education
and understanding of young people and the public
at large in relation to the management of land,
rural resources, the environment and the social
fabric of the countryside.

As a main funder of The Royal Highland Education
Trust (RHET), RHASS supports RHET’s work to deliver
curriculum-linked educational activities and
experiences to around 72,810 young people and 4,752
adults across Scotland.
The Society continues its support of the Gaelic
language by providing a medal and monetary
award to the Gaelic Learner of the year, chosen by
An Comunn Gàidhealach, organisers of the Royal
National MoD.
The Society also provides academic achievement
award medals to students at Glasgow School
of Veterinary Studies, the Royal (Dick) School of
Veterinary Studies, and University of Stirling.
In 2017 the Society provided awards and grants
to RHET Countryside Initiatives to enable them
to continue their work throughout Scotland in
educating young people about food, farming and
rural life.
Hold and support shows, trade fairs, exhibitions,
conferences or other events relating to livestock
and other animals, agricultural and other
machinery and implements and agriculture and
rural produce.
The Society staged its 178th Royal Highland Show
(RHS) in June 2017 attracting record number of
visitors totalling over 190,000. The focus of the fourday event is the best of farming, food and rural life
and the RHS plays a significant role in bridging the
gap between rural and urban audiences. Research
undertaken identified that 60% of visitors were
non-rural and key reasons for attending were: it is
a main event in the calendar; to view livestock and
machinery and to watch horse events.
The RHS is also an important way of influencing the
next generation of food consumers and, in order
to support this, RHASS provides free access to the
show for anyone aged 15 or under. 28,982 children
visited the 2017 event with 7,370 attending as part of
organised school visits.
The Society awarded two gold medal, four silver
medals and two certificates of commendation
under its Technical Innovation Award scheme in
2017. With a remit to reward innovation in the design
and manufacture of machines, equipment and
appliances, the awards are the oldest presented by
RHASS, which gave its first award for an implement
in 1793.
Encourage good husbandry, conservation, rural
employment, training, craftsmanship, forestry and
long service in such activities
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The Society’s headquarters, Ingliston House, is a
Grade A listed building that houses various works
of art, artefacts, books and historical documents
relating to the Society’s history. The Society holds
extensive records and books about Scotland’s
historic geographical plans, roads and bridges
infrastructure, land holding data, genealogy and
agricultural information, as well as archives on
some leading influencers and politicians over a 130year period.
Much of this information is still of interest today
but was inaccessible to the general public. Work is
ongoing, as part of a project funded by the Heritage
Lottery Fund, to catalogue and scan records into a
highly accessible online archive accessed via the
Society’s website. Our aspiration is to continue to
make more of the records that the Society holds
available to the public.
The Society is proud to recognise the achievements
of long-serving and talented employees and each
year recognises individuals who have worked in the
industry for the same employer for a considerable
number of years. This year 76 awards were
presented to individuals in the land-based and rural
industries. 22 of those individuals had previously
been awarded a long-service certificate for 30 or 40
years and have now been recognised for service of
40 or 50 years.
RHASS supports an academic grant scheme with
the Glasgow School of Veterinary Studies and the
Royal (Dick) School of Veterinary Studies to provide a
monetary award to students undertaking summertime studies which will be of benefit to Scottish
agriculture or equestrianism. The awards, of up to
£1,500 each, are given to those students selected by
each University who will be undertaking a project
during their summer break which will be considered
to be of benefit to rural Scotland. The results of these
projects will be presented to the RHASS Board of
Directors and shared with the Society’s Members and
the wider rural community as appropriate.
Assist, financially or otherwise, and confer and
cooperate with agriculture, rural, horticultural,
forestry, scientific, educational, charitable, cultural
and other societies, institutes or other entities
in Scotland and elsewhere (including, without
prejudice to the foregoing generality, support for
The Royal Highland Education Trust)

Significant awards were made in the field of
education, notably to the Royal Highland Education
Trust. Furthermore, the Society continued its longterm support of RSABI, as committed in 2015, for a
total of £42,000 over three years.
Cooperate with government departments and
other organisations concerned with or interested in
agriculture, food and rural affairs
RHASS continues its role in actively participating in
industry initiatives and promoting the interests of the
membership, as well as facilitating discussions with
industry partners on key issues impacting the industry.
The Society is one of the key stakeholders in
the Women in Agriculture (WIA) group, which
was launched in Spring 2016. This initiative is a
collaborative project including representatives
from Scottish Association of Young Farmer Clubs
(SAYFC) with which the Society has strong ties. The
group aims to recognise the collective contribution
of women to farming, forestry and rural businesses
all over Scotland, whilst signposting support and
development opportunities.
During 2017, the WIA organised a number of events
including mentoring workshops, developed in
partnership with Savills and RBS. The First Minister
announced the formation of the Women in Agriculture
taskforce at the Royal Highland Show in 2017.
RHASS continues to support government policy
development in various ways with engagement
in working groups and parliamentary cross-party
meetings.
This year RHASS continued its partnership with
Scotland Food & Drink and is a major supporter of
the Scotland Food & Drink Excellence awards. With a
significant number of RHASS’ Members reliant on a
thriving food & drink sector, the Society is committed
to supporting the industry, which generates over
£14bn annually2.
RHASS also sponsored and supported several
industry events throughout this financial year
including Scottish Rural Awards and the LANTRA
Land Based Learner of the Year.

The Society’s investments are managed to ensure
there are sufficient funds to distribute, and processes
are in place for approving allocating and monitoring
awards. During the 2016-17 year, awards of £193,574
were awarded. An additional £166,137 in prize money
was presented at the Royal Highland Show.

2. Source: Scotland Food and Drink
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Investment Policy and Performance
The Trustees’ primary objectives are to invest the
assets in such a way as to maximise capital value
through a combination of capital growth and
income generation, subject to an acceptable level
of risk. This is achieved by agreeing and monitoring
appropriate benchmarks and performance targets
for investments managers Smith and Williamson
Investment Management LLP, allowing early
withdrawal of funds, if necessary, without penalties
but accepting that the timing of the withdrawal may
reflect lower market values. The investment timeframe is in excess of five years.
The portfolio is currently managed with a Medium
Risk strategy, whereby the investment portfolio will
normally have a greater allocation to equities than
fixed interest securities and cash deposits. The
portfolio therefore assumes a higher volatility and
capacity for loss than a portfolio that has a greater
allocation to fixed interest securities than equities.
During the course of the year ended 30th November
2017, the portfolio delivered a total return of +17.18%.
This compares to the comparable MSCI WMA
Balanced Total Return benchmark of +10.82%. Over
this period, significant funds were realised from the
portfolio to meet necessary infrastructure work at
the Showground. The current asset allocation of the
portfolio reflects the agreed Medium Risk profile.
Looking forward, ongoing Brexit negotiations are
starting to affect the domestic UK economy, in
contrast to a relatively stronger outlook from most
other major global economies including the US
and the Eurozone. Bearing this in mind, and indeed
heightened geo-political risk generally, it is important
to retain exposure to a broadly diversified spread
of geographic regions and industry sectors. The
long-term aim of this strategy is to ensure a diverse
source of income and returns that are not all
susceptible to identical risks.

Financial Review 2017
The Society generated total income of £8.04million
in 2017, an increase from a total income of
£7.85million in 2016.
Whilst generally income is up over all revenue
streams, we have enjoyed particular growth in
revenues from the Royal Highland Show, which in the
financial year under review generated £4.45million,
an increase of £104,000 from 2016. Primarily this extra
revenue came from an increase in gates and car
park revenue.
With £615,000 of subscriptions received, membership
income saw only modest growth year-on-year.
Income from Other Activities, which includes
income from the hotel, car parking and income
from signage, generated £1.27million, an increase of
£29,000 from the previous financial year.
Trading income, being exclusively income generated
by the Society’s subsidiary Highland Centre Ltd,
remained static after a period of growth at a figure
of £1.6million.
Total revenue expenditure in the year to 30
November 2017 was £8.27million, an increase of
£0.6million from 2016, reflecting a programme
of expenditure and investment in new facilities
including the members’ area.
In addition to increased spending noted above, we
have begun a significant programme of capital
investment works throughout the Ingliston site.
Show-related activities (i.e. costs related to the
production of the Royal Highland Show) incurred
expenditure of £4.4million in this financial year,
an increase of £613,000 from 2016. The increase
was due largely to escalating events safety costs
and the costs of the temporary members’ facility
during the Show following the demolition of the
MacRobert Pavilion.
Membership costs show a substantial decrease
of £300,000 from the previous year; the 2016 figure
having included costs relating to the demolition of the
MacRobert Pavilion and consultancy fees associated
with the construction of the new member’s facility.
Expenditure on other charitable activities increased
as well by £70,000. Continuing investment in
the Health & Safety team has contributed to an
increase in Estates Department payroll costs,
bringing these from £377,000 in 2016 to £410,000 in
2017. This continues and enhances our focus on
safety for all events delivered on site.
Governance costs reduced during 2017 to £323,000.
These costs included the cost of directors meetings
throughout the financial year, audit and other
professional fees, as well as incorporating 50% of key
management salaries to reflect time spent by senior
management on the governance of the charity.
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Trading activity costs, which include Highland Centre
Ltd payroll, letting and contracted services costs,
depreciation and support costs saw an increase
of £450,000 to £1.8million. This includes £255,000 of
development costs relating to historic plans for the
east of the site being halted. These costs have now
been written off.

Plans for future period

Overall then, the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Activities generated a small deficit of £234,000k at
the operating activity level. This reduction from the
previous year is not reflective of an underlying strong
set of results however, since the income statements
are carrying costs of approximately £400,000 in
relation to the provision of membership facilities
during the Show and also a total development cost
figure of £412,000. This latter figure includes £255,000
of one-off historical development costs from projects
considered no longer viable, and hence written off,
and demolition costs of the MacRobert Pavilion.

It aims to achieve this by:

Added to this, the introduction of strong new income
streams place the Society in a solid position as
we move forward into 2018. One of these is the
Moxy Hotel, part of the IKEA group, construction
of which began in 2017 with completion expected
in late Summer 2018. Because of the nature of
the transaction, the land leased as part of the
arrangement has been accordingly reclassified as
an investment property and valued at a market rate
at November 2017. As the historic cost of the land is
minimal this has resulted in a significant revaluation
surplus of £3.7million in the year, although no cash
was received in the year and rental income is not
expected to begin until later in 2018.
Investments performed well in 2017, enjoying a total
growth from 2016 of 17.18%. This growth was mainly
due to the management of the investment portfolio
held with the Royal Highland Society Development
Trust. During 2017, a substantial part of the portfolio
was sold in order to help fund phase one of the
infrastructure project being undertaken at the
Ingliston site: to upgrade drainage, water, electrics
and other utility supplies.
Fixed assets show a year-on-year increase of just
over £6.6million this year, due to the revaluation
of the investment property and the capitalisation
of the infrastructure works. In addition to releasing
investment funds, the balance of the infrastructure
works is being funded by loan facilities provided by
the Society’s bankers, the first tranche of £2million
having been drawn down by the end of the
financial year.
The total funds value of £18.585million in the
Consolidated Balance sheet represents an increase
of £3.6 million from the previous financial year.
We continue to invest in our people, both the board
of directors and the staff, to ensure that we have a
team fit for purpose.

The Society is committed to becoming a sustainable,
dynamic and progressive membership organisation
playing a supportive and influential role in a thriving
and innovative rural economy in Scotland. As such
our plan from last year continues.

1.

Being a well-governed Society with a clarity of
aims and a strategic approach. The Society
is undertaking its regular strategy and policy
review with the aim of creating a robust
strategic plan for 2017-2030

2. Maximising the opportunities to be financially
sustainable and secure. This will be achieved
by maintaining and building on the current
performance of Royal Highland Show and
reviewing opportunities for new income
streams from events and land-related income.
We will continue to invest in the Royal Highland
Centre to meet our goal of becoming a leading
events venue in Scotland
3. Supporting and adding value to our members
by developing clear member benefits.
Comprehensive membership research will
be undertaken to identify opportunities for
strengthening our membership offering.
4. Bringing farming and the working countryside
and its practices to life for young people and
supporting the next generation of rural leaders
by maintaining our investment in grants and
awards.
5. Enabling and developing our activities to
fulfil our stated charitable aims including
successfully delivering the class-leading Royal
Highland Show.
6. Remaining an influential body in the promotion
of Scotland’s farming, food and rural life and
providing a safe place for debate around
Scotland-wide rural matters.
7. Investing in our three core areas: our
infrastructure, technology and digital resources,
and our people.

James F Warnock
Chairman
28 March 2018
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Trustees, Officers
and Advisers
The Directors of The
Royal Highland &
Agricultural Society of
Scotland are the Charity
Trustees of The Royal
Highland & Agricultural
Society of Scotland.
Listed below are those
Charity Trustees who
were in office at the end
of the financial year 2017.
President

Sir Crispin Agnew of
Lochnaw Bt, QC
Vice Presidents
Sir Robert Clerk

Charles L Dudgeon
Professor Julie L
Fitzpatrick
Louise Welsh
Chairman

James F Warnock MBE
Honorary Secretary
William L Gill

Honorary Treasurer
Allan J Murray

Honorary Vice President
J A Clark Stewart
Area Directors
Aberdeen

Christopher G M
Shepherd
Eric A Mutch

Andrew Rennie

John D McWilliam
Lothian

John Hamilton

William G Gray
James Logan

Jacqueline McCreery
Borders

Archie C Stewart

Dumfries & Galloway
A Keith Brooke

James G Dunlop
Ian Beck

Matthew Currie
Highland

Robert B Newlands

Kenneth Matheson
Dennis Bridgeford

A Kenneth Sutherland
Perth

Andrew S Reid
Susan Lawrie

D Bruce Lang

Kay J A Adam
Stirling

Extraordinary Director
representing the British
Agricultural and Garden
Machinery Association
(BAGMA):
Alasdair Straker
Extraordinary Director
representing the
Agricultural Engineers’
Association (AEA):
Les Davidson
The following Honorary
Directors were in
office at the end of the
financial year
Sir Ian D Grant CBE
Martin Hall
Chaplain
Rev Cameron Mackenzie

Anne Logan BVMS

The following Trustees also
served during the year

Gordon G Sutherland

President
Lord Aberdeen, Marquess
of Aberdeen and Temair

Andrew B Hornall

James C Warnock
Strathclyde

James F Warnock

David C S Alexander
Keith Campbell

Alexander Bankier
Extraordinary Directors

Vice Presidents
James Brown MBE
Neil Godsman
Sir Moir Lockhead
Alastair Macphie
Chairman
A Keith Brooke

Archie F Ballantyne

Directors
John Sleigh
Ian Watson
Willie Purdie
William Downie
Neil Butler
Andrew Burnett
Bryce Sloan
William R Ferguson
Alistair R H MacMillan

John G Sinclair

Chaplain
Rev Kevin Gruer

Chris Baxter
Louise Elder
John Seed

John Watson

Martin MacDonald
Angus McDonald
Katie Brisbane

Robert J Maitland
Allan J Murray
John Mackie

Alistair J Mackay
William F Arnot
James Muir

John (Ian) D McKerrell
Colin J Lowrie

C Malcolm Coubrough

Management Team
Chief Executive
Alan Laidlaw
Society Secretary
David Alcorn
(until 27 April 2017)
Finance Manager
Stuart Rae

Ewan M Brewis

Show Manager
David A Jackson

Thomas Tennant

Head of Operations
Mark Currie

Neil Thomson

Partnership &
Fundraising Manager
Jo Andrews
Royal Highland Education
Trust Manager
Katrina Barclay
Commercial Director
Lorne Scott
Address
Ingliston House
Royal Highland Centre
Ingliston
Edinburgh EH28 8NB
Registered Number:
SC004561
www.rhass.org.uk
0131 335 6200

Advisers
Bank
The Royal Bank of
Scotland
30 Old Liston Road
Newbridge
Edinburgh EH28 8SS
Independent Auditor
Ernst & Young LLP
Atria One, 144 Morrison
Street, Edinburgh, EH3 8EB
Solicitors
Shepherd & Wedderburn
LLP
5th Floor
1 Exchange Crescent
Conference Square
Edinburgh EH3 8UL
Actuary
JLT Benefit Solutions Ltd
Bond House
The Bourse, Boar Lane
Leeds LS1 5EN
Insurance Brokers
Marsh Brokers Limited
Orchard Brae House
30 Queensferry Road
Edinburgh EH4 2HS
Planning Advisers
Muir Smith Evans
10A Alva Street
Edinburgh EH2 4QG
Public Relations
Consultants
Represent
57 Calton Road
Edinburgh EH8 8FJ

RHASS ANNUAL REPORT 2018 | 31

Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities
in respect of the Financial Statements
The Charity’s Trustees are responsible for preparing
a Trustees’ annual report and financial statements
in accordance with applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards.
The law applicable to charities in Scotland requires
the Charity Trustees to prepare financial statements
for each year which gives a true and fair view of
the Charity and of the incoming resources and
application of resources, of the Charity for that
period. In preparing the financial statements the
trustees are required to:
•

Select suitable accounting policies and then
apply them consistently;

•

Observe the methods and principles in the
applicable Charities SORP

•

Make judgements and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent

•

State whether applicable accounting standards
have been followed, subject to any material
departure disclosed and explained in the
financial statements

•

Prepare the financial statements on the going
concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the Charity will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping proper
accounting records that disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Charity and to enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Charities and
Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005, the Charity
Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended),
and the provisions of the Trust deed (as amended).
The Trustees are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the Charity and taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregularities.
The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance
and integrity of the Charity and financial information
included on the Charity’s website. Legislation in the
United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ
from legislation in other jurisdictions.
Approved by the Trustees and signed on their
behalf by:

James F Warnock

Chairman
Date: 28 March 2018
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Independent auditor’s report to the Trustees and Members of
The Royal Highland and Agricultural Society of Scotland
Opinion

Use of our report

We have audited the financial statements of the
Royal Highland and Agricultural Society of Scotland
for the year ended 30 November 2017 which
comprise the consolidated and charity statement
of financial activities (incorporating the income
and expenditure account), consolidated and
charity statement of financial position, consolidated
statement of cash flows and accompanying notes
1 to 33. The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in their preparation is applicable law
and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)
including FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”.

This report is made solely to the charity’s trustees,
as a body, in accordance with regulation 10 of the
Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006. Our
audit work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the charity’s trustees those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor’s report and
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the charity and the charity’s
trustees as a body, for our audit work, for this report,
or for the opinions we have formed.

In our opinion the financial statements:
•

give a true and fair view of the state of the group
and charity’s affairs as at 30 November 2017 and
of its incoming resources and application of
resources, for the year then ended;

•

have been properly prepared in accordance
with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice; and

•

have been prepared in accordance with the
Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act
2005 and regulations 6 and 8 of the Charities
Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK))
and applicable law. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report below. We are
independent of the group and charity in accordance
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in the UK, including
the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following
matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to
report to you where:
•

the trustees’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or

•

the trustees have not disclosed in the financial
statements any identified material uncertainties
that may cast significant doubt about the
group and charity’s ability to continue to adopt
the going concern basis of accounting for a
period of at least twelve months from the date
when the financial statements are authorised
for issue.

Other information
The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report set out on pages 4 to 31,
other than the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon. The trustees are responsible for the
other information.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements,
we are required to determine whether there is a
material misstatement in the financial statements or
a material misstatement of the other information. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of the other
information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent auditor’s report to the Trustees and Members of The
Royal Highland and Agricultural Society of Scotland (continued)
Matters on which we are required
to report by exception

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements

We have nothing to report in respect of the following
matters where the Charities Accounts (Scotland)
Regulations 2006 require us to report to you if, in our
opinion:

We have been appointed as auditor under section
44(1)(c) of the Charities and Trustee Investment
(Scotland) Act 2005 and report in accordance with
the Acts and relevant regulations made or having
effect thereunder.

•

the information given in the financial
statements is inconsistent in any material
respect with Trustees’ Annual Report; or

•

proper accounting records have not been
kept; or

•

the financial statements are not in agreement
with the accounting records; or

•

we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees
As explained more fully in the trustees’ responsibilities
statement set out on page 31, the trustees are
responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a
true and fair view, and for such internal control as
the trustees determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the trustees
are responsible for assessing the group and charity’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the group
or charity or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK)
will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.
A further description of our responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council’s website at https://www.
frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description
forms part of our auditor’s report.

Statutory Auditor
Edinburgh
Date: 3 April 2018
Ernst & Young LLP is eligible to act as an auditor in
terms of section 1212 of the Companies Act 2006
1.

The maintenance and integrity of the group
and charity website is the responsibility of the
trustees; the work carried out by the auditor
does not involve consideration of these matters
and, accordingly, the auditor accepts no
responsibility for any changes that may have
occurred to the financial statements since they
were initially presented on the website.

2. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other
jurisdictions.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities
(including consolidated income and expenditure account)
for year ended 30 November 2017

Scottish Charity: SC004561

Note

Unrestricted
Funds
£

Restricted
Funds
£

2017
Total
£

2016
Total
£

Income from:
Donations and Legacies

2

-

-

-

-

- Show related activities

3

4,450,779

-

4,450,779

4,346,829

- Memberships

3

615,290

-

615,290

544,053

- Other Activities

3

1,322,370

-

1,322,370

1,292,239

Trading Activities

4

1,603,016

-

1,603,016

1,602,011

Investment Income

5

42,887

3,370

46,257

67,365

8,034,342

3,370

8,037,712

7,852,497

Charitable Activities

Total income
Expenditure on:
Cost of Raising Funds

6

42,124

-

42,124

282,025

Charitable Activities

7

-

-

-

-

- Show Related Activities

8

4,424,733

-

4,424,733

3,811,183

- Memberships

9

1,058,666

-

1,058,666

1,358,930

- Other activities

10

912,195

-

912,195

842,492

Trading Activities

11

1,834,317

-

1,834,317

1,379,668

Total expenditure

8,272,035

-

8,272,035

7,674,298

Net expenditure on operating activities

(237,693)

3,370

(234,323)

178,199

129,114

-

129,114

1,947

Gains/(Losses) on investments
Realised gains on investments
Unrealised gains/(losses) on investments

20

19,326

8,765

28,091

82,000

Unrealised gains/(losses) on investment properties

19

3,696,500

-

3,696,500

-

3,607,247

12,135

3,619,382

262,146

(9,416)

-

(9,416)

-

3,597,831

12,135

3,609,966

262,146

(22,000)

-

(22,000)

(24,000)

3,575,831

12,135

3,587,966

238,146

Total Funds Brought Forward

14,877,787

119,135

14,996,922

14,758,776

Total Funds carried forward

18,453,618

131,270

18,584,888

14,996,922

Net Income/(Expenditure)
Corporation Tax
Net income/(Expenditure) after tax
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit pension
schemes
Net movement in funds
Reconciliation of funds
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Charity Statement of Financial Activities
(including income and expenditure account)
for year ended 30 November 2017

Scottish Charity: SC4561

Unrestricted
Funds
£

Restricted
Funds
£

2017
Total
£

2016
Total
£

Income from:
Donations and Legacies

2

2,130,623

-

2,130,623

-

- Show related activities

3

4,450,779

-

4,450,779

4,346,829

- Memberships

3

615,290

-

615,290

544,053

- Other Activities

3

2,139,270

-

2,139,270

2,094,239

Investment Income

5

13,966

3,370

17,336

21,091

9,349,928

3,370

9,353,298

7,006,212

Charitable Activities

Total income

Expenditure on:
Cost of Raising Funds

6

42,124

-

42,124

282,025

Charitable Activites

7

-

-

-

-

- Show Related Activities

8

4,361,810

-

4,361,810

3,813,183

- Memberships

9

1,031,133

-

1,031,133

1,358,930

- Other activities

10

2,063,361

-

2,063,361

1,461,209

7,498,428

-

7,498,428

6,915,347

1,851,500

3,370

1,854,870

90,865

3,696,500

-

3,696,500

-

8,765

8,765

3,200

5,548,000

12,135

5,560,135

94,065

(22,000)

-

(22,000)

(24,000)

5,526,000

12,135

5,538,135

70,065

Total Funds Brought Forward

12,498,512

119,135

12,617,647

12,547,582

Total Funds carried forward

18,024,512

131,270

18,155,782

12,617,647

Total expenditure

Net Income/(Expenditure) and net movement in
funds before gains and losses on investments

Unrealised gains/(losses) on investment properties

19

Unrealised gains/(losses) on investments

25

Net Income/(Expenditure)

Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit pension
schemes

Net movement in funds

33

Reconciliation of Funds
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
as at 30 November 2017

Scottish Charity: SC4561

Notes

2017
£

2016
£

Fixed Assets
Tangible Assets

18

16,549,409

12,653,304

Investment Properties

19

3,700,000

-

Investments

20

587,164

1,537,277

20,836,573

14,190,581

21,889

5,158

674,128

642,615

2,110,167

1,678,184

2,806,184

2,325,957

3,157,869

1,519,616

(351,685)

806,341

1,900,000

-

18,584,888

14,996,922

-

-

18,584,888

14,996,922

Current Assets
Stock
Debtors

21

Cash at Bank and in Hand

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

22

Net Current (Liabilities)/Assets

Long Term Liabilities
Bank Loan

23

Total Net Assets before Pension Asset

Pension Scheme Asset

33

Net Assets

Represented by:
General (Unrestricted) Fund:
Capital Account

24

18,358,493

14,782,662

Designated Funds

24

95,125

95,125

Special (Restricted) Funds:

25

Total Funds

APPROVED ON BEHALF OF THE DIRECTORS:

James F Warnock
Chairman

Allan J Murray
Honorary Treasurer
28 March 2018

131,270

119,135

18,584,888

14,996,922
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Charity Balance Sheet
as at 30 November 2017

Scottish Charity: SC4561

Notes

2017
£

2016
£

Fixed Assets
Tangible Assets

18

16,498,632

12,607,858

Investment properties

19

3,700,000

Investments

20

333,119

324,355

20,531,751

12,932,213

21,889

5,158

512,015

572,896

1,871,321

403,524

2,405,225

981,578

2,881,194

1,296,144

(475,969)

(314,566)

1,900,000

-

18,155,782

12,617,647

-

-

18,155,782

12,617,647

Current Assets
Stock
Debtors

21

Cash at Bank and in Hand

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

22

Net Current Liabilities

Long Term Liabilities
Bank Loan

23

Total Net Assets before Pension Asset

Pension Scheme Asset

33

Total Net Assets

Represented by:
General (Unrestricted) Fund:
Capital Account

24

18,019,387

12,493,387

Designated Funds

24

5,125

5,125

Special (Restricted) Funds:

25

131,270

119,135

18,155,782

12,617,647

Total Charity Funds
APPROVED ON BEHALF OF THE DIRECTORS:

James F Warnock
Chairman

Allan J Murray
Honorary Treasurer
28 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 November 2017
2017
£

2016
£

2,457,199

1,575,565

46,261

72,128

(5,110,969)

(1,982,677)

32,176

9,618

(87,427)

(84,771)

(4,154)

21,895

1,198,897

38,605

-

-

(3,925,216)

(1,925,202)

2,000,000

-

Repayments of borrowings

-

-

Interest paid

-

-

2,000,000

-

531,983

(349,637)

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 December 2016

1,678,184

2,027,821

Cash and cash equivalents at 30 November 2017

2,210,167

1,678,184

Note

Net Cash inflow from operating activities

26

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest and dividends received
Payments to acquire tangible fixed assets
Sale of tangible fixed assets
Payments to acquire investments
Movement of cash within investments
Sale of investments
Sale of tangible assets
Net cash used by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Borrowings from bank loans

Net cash from/(used by) financing activities

Increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents
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Notes to the Financial Statements
1 Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies adopted,
judgements and key sources of estimation
uncertainty in the preparation of the financial
statements are as follows:

a) Basis of preparation and
assessment of going concern
The Financial Statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention with the exception
of investments which are included at market value.
The Financial Statements have been prepared in
accordance with the Statement of Recommended
Practice: Accounting and Reporting by Charities
preparing their financial statements in accordance
with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable
in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) issued on
16 July 2014 and the Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic
of Ireland (FRS 102), the Charities and Trustee
Investment (Scotland) Act 2005 and the Charities
Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended).
The Royal Highland and Agricultural Society of
Scotland (the Society) constitutes a public benefit
entity as defined by FRS 102.
The Trustees consider that there are no material
uncertainties about the Society’s ability to continue
as a going concern with sufficient free reserves to
draw on if required for at least 12 months from the
date of approval of the financial statements.

b) Group Financial Statements
These financial statements consolidate the Financial
Statements of the charity and its wholly owned
subsidiary Highland Centre Limited with the addition
of the Royal Highland Society Development Trust. The
financial statements of the Royal Highland Education
Trust, the Roy Watherston Memorial Trust and the
Royal Agricultural Society of the Commonwealth
are not consolidated in these financial statements
as they are independent trusts and not under the
control of the Society.

c) Funds Structure
Unrestricted income funds comprise those funds
which the trustees are free to use for any purpose in
furtherance of the charitable objects. Unrestricted
funds include designated funds where the trustees,
at their discretion, have created a fund for a
specific purpose.
Restricted funds are funds which are to be used in
accordance with specific restrictions imposed by the
donor or trust deed.

d) Income recognition
Incoming resources represent the total income
receivable during the year comprising members
subscriptions, rents income from shows, income
from its trading subsidiary, investment income,
legacies, donations and sundry other income.
Donations and legacy income are recognised in
the financial statements when there is entitlement,
probability of receipt and the amount is quantifiable.
Grants received in support of the Society’s promotions
are taken into income in the year to which the
support relates. Grants received towards capital
developments are recognised in income on a
systematic basis over the expected useful life of the
asset. Capital grants are treated as deferred income
until such point as construction of the relevant asset is
complete as this is considered the primary condition
of the grant. Once this condition is met, the grant is
then recognised in its entirety.
Subscriptions for Life by Instalments, Term and
Annual Membership are released as income wholly
in the year of receipt. Fully paid Life Memberships
since 2005, are released over a five year period
commencing from the year of receipt.
Show income primarily includes ticket sales, trade
stand sales, catering commission and other sundry
show income such as catalogues and car parking
sales. Income in advance for shows and other
activities is recognised at the time of the show or
other activity.
Trading income is generated by Highland Centre
Limited, the trading subsidiary of the Society. Its
activities relate primarily to the letting out of event
space.
Rents received from leased land and buildings are
included on a straight line basis over the term of the
lease.

e) Expenditure
All expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis
and has been allocated to the appropriate heading
in the financial statements. Where costs cannot be
directly attributed to a particular heading they have
been allocated to activities on a basis consistent
with the use of the resource.
Expenditure on raising funds

The costs of raising funds include expenditure
related to the fundraising activities of the Society.
This includes staff costs and organised events.
Expenditure on charitable activities

The costs of charitable activities include all
expenditure associated with achieving the
objectives of the Society.
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Grants payable in cash are included in the heading
of Prizes and Awards in Note 17 in the Notes to the
Financial Statements. Wherever possible such
grants are accounted for on an accruals basis so
that they appear for the year to which the award
relates. Institutions awarded cash grants are
identified in the notes to the financial statements.
Where applicable cash grants awarded to
individuals are shown in aggregate.
Grants given by way of free entry to or discounted
rates on exhibitors’ trade stand sites at the Royal
Highland Show are netted off in the total of trade
stand rental income.
Prize money awarded during the Royal Highland
Show is taken wholly in the year of payment.

f) Taxation
The Society is exempt from corporation tax on its
charitable activities. The taxation charge comprises
current tax recognised in the trading subsidiary.

g) Fixed assets
i)

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less
depreciation. Depreciation is calculated to write off
the cost of fixed assets by equal instalments over
their expected useful lives. The depreciation rates
are as follows:
Assets under Construction

not depreciated

Freehold property and
infrastructure

15, 25 and 50 years

Exhibition Halls

up to 50 years

Exhibition Halls
- Fixtures and Fittings

5 years

Show Equipment

3, 5, 10 and 20 years

Plant, Furniture and Furnishings

5, 10 and 15 years

Office Equipment

3 years

Motor Vehicles

5 years

Many of the properties which are owned by RHASS
have been held for a considerable number of
years and are not identified separately in the
balance sheet. It would therefore not be practical to
identify the costs of the component parts, without
considerable cost and effort. However, whilst we
have considered this impractical, going forward all
assets will be componentised on appropriate basis.
Assets under construction (including development
costs) are not depreciated until the asset is in
operation; when in operation, the asset is transferred
to the appropriate fixed asset class and depreciated
at the appropriate rate from the first year of use.

The carrying values of tangible fixed assets are
reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may
not be recoverable.
i)

Investment properties

Investment properties are carried at market value as
estimated by a qualified independent valuer. These
properties are not depreciated but are revalued
annually with the gain or loss being recognised in the
Statement of Financial Activities.

h) Investments
Details of investments together with the cost and
market values at the beginning and end of the
financial year appear in the notes to the Financial
Statements.
Where the Society has investments in listed entities
with a readily ascertainable market value, these are
held at market value.
Investment in unlisted companies are held at
cost and are subject to tests of impairment when
indicators exist.
Investments are stated at fair value on the balance
sheet date. The Statement of Financial Activities
includes the net gains and losses arising on
revaluations and disposals throughout the year. The
funds are largely invested to generate an above
inflationary return.

i)

Gains and losses on investments

All gains and losses are taken to the Statement
of Financial Activities as they arise. Realised gains
and losses on investments are calculated as the
difference between sales proceeds and their
opening carrying value or their purchase value if
acquired subsequent to the first day of the financial
year. Unrealised gains and losses are calculated as
the difference between the fair value at the year end
and their carrying value. Realised and unrealised
investment gains and losses are recognised in the
Statement of Financial Activities.

j)

Stocks

Stock is made up of the show and society supplies
and is represented at lower cost and net realisable
value.

k) Deferred Income
Deferred income arises from Members’ subscriptions
paid in advance, income for future shows and
income for the future hire of our exhibition halls and
facilities. The income is released over the period
over which the economic benefits are expected
to materialise. For long-term memberships this is
estimated to be seven years.
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l)

Operating leases

Operating Lease rentals are charged to the
Statement of Financial Activities on the basis of initial
deposits and periodic rentals paid in the course of
the financial year.

m) Heritage Assets
Heritage assets are not recognised in the Statement
of Financial Activities. The Society’s heritage assets
comprise over 90 works of art and artefacts and
340 silverware and trophies. The artwork is mainly
displayed in Ingliston House and the silverware and
trophies used for Royal Highland Show prizegivings.
No material acquisitions occurred in the year, and
there were no disposals. The Society chooses not to
recognise these assets due to the cost involved in
valuing them.

n) Pensions
i)

Defined benefit pension scheme

The Society contributes to a Defined Benefits Scheme
at a rate set by the scheme trustee. This scheme
was closed to new entrants on 31 March 2004 and
closed to future service accruals on 1 December 2010.
The pension scheme is administered by Trustees
and the assets are held separately from those of the
Society. Independent actuaries complete valuations
triennially.
The Defined Benefits Scheme is being accounted
for under Section 28 of FRS 102 with any annually
calculated deficit on the funding of the scheme
shown in the financial statements as a designated
fund entitled “Pension Reserve” which is included with
unrestricted funds in the Balance Sheet. The Society
considers it prudent not to include any pension
surplus on the balance sheet.
ii) Personal Pension Plans

The Society contributes to Personal Pension Plans
operated by Standard Life for its eligible employees.
These contributions are accounted for on a defined
contribution basis in accordance with FRS 102. The
amounts are charged as expenditure and represent
the contributions payable to those plans in respect
of the accounting period. The assets of the scheme
held separately from those of the Society in an
independently administered fund.

o) Judgements in applying
accounting policies and key
sources of estimation uncertainties
There are a number of actuarial assumptions
used in the quantification of the groups pensions
commitments which are described in Note 33. With
the exception of the above, there are no estimates
applied in the preparation of these statements.

42 | RHASS ANNUAL REPORT 2018

2

Income from Donations and Legacies

Group
2017
£

Donation from subsidiary
3

Charity
2016
£

-

2017
£
-

2016
£

2,130,623

-

Income from Charitable Activities
Income from Royal Highland Show

2017
£

2016
£

Entry fees for livestock and competitions, trade
stand income and royalties.

1,982,385

1,986,939

Gates and car park revenue

1,889,589

1,776,699

Sponsorship, advertising and publication sales

494,129

489,009

Other Income

84,676

94,182

4,450,779

4,346,829

615,290

544,053

Income from memberships
Membership Subscriptions
Group
Income from Other Charitable Activities
Rents from buildings, hotel, signage and car parks
Other Society income

4

2017
£

Charity
2016
£

2017
£

2016
£

1,267,826

1,238,823

2,084,726

2,040,823

54,544

53,416

54,544

53,416

1,322,370

1,292,239

2,139,270

2,094,239

Income from Trading Activities
The wholly owned trading subsidiary Highland Centre Ltd (HCL) is incorporated
in the United Kingdom (company number SC265245).
Income from Highland Centre Ltd

2017
£

Outside Areas

332,392

427,513

Exhibition Hall Lets

745,426

750,550

187,195

148,986

338,003

274,962

1,603,016

1,602,011

Income from car parks
Other Income

5

2016
£

Investment Income

Group
2017
£

Charity
2016
£

2017
£

2016
£

Unrestricted Funds
Dividends
Bank Interest

42,038

51,630

13,820

13,761

849

11,462

146

3,057

42,887

63,092

13,966

16,818

Restricted Funds
Dividend Income

3,370

4,273

3,370

4,273

46,257

67,365

17,336

21,091
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6

Expenditure on raising funds

Group
2017
£

Group
2016
£

Development Costs
Depreciation/Gain on Sale
Support and governance costs

7

Charity
2017
£

Charity
2016
£

219,318
13,457

219,318

14,707

13,457

14,707

28,667

48,000

28,667

48,000

42,124

282,025

42,124

282,025

Analysis of expenditure on charitable activities - Group
Direct

Support
& Governance

2017
Total

2016
Total

Charitable Expenditure
Show Related activities
Memberships
Other activities

3,419,224

1,005,509

4,424,733

3,811,183

386,436

672,230

1,058,666

1,358,930

530,260

381,935

912,195

842,492

4,335,920

2,059,674

6,395,594

6,012,605

Analysis of expenditure on charitable activities - Charity
Direct

Support
& Governance

2017
Total

2016
Total

Charitable Expenditure
Show Related activities
Memberships
Other activities

3,419,224

942,586

4,361,810

3,813,183

386,436

644,697

1,031,133

1,358,930

1,086,537

976,824

2,063,361

1,461,209

4,892,197

2,564,107

7,456,304

6,633,322

Support costs have been allocated across activities. These include occupancy costs, IT , finance, marketing and other central
costs to the Charity's staff. The costs have been allocated on the basis of the proportion of staff time spent on each activity
8

Expenditure on show related activities

Showyard Preparation - Materials & Contractors
Showyard Preparation - Hire of Equipment

Group
2017
£

Remuneration and expenses of Show staff
Hotel and travelling expenses of Show officials
Music and special events
Police and Ambulance services
Advertising & Promotion
Other Expenditure
Payroll and related costs

Charity
2016
£

416,179

446,260

416,179

850,091

437,237

850,091

437,237

577

2,880

577

2,880

24,401

27,504

24,401

27,504

467,429

373,800

467,429

373,800

115,780

114,033

115,780

114,033
123,385

114,577

123,385

114,577

178,553

171,232

178,553

171,232

246,474

323,733

246,474

323,733

36,177

41,541

36,177

43,541

273,394

285,317

273,394

285,317

Prizes & Awards

226,653

233,144

226,653

233,144

Depreciation

438,858

377,472

438,858

377,472

1,005,509

883,726

942,586

883,726

4,424,733

3,811,183

4,361,810

3,813,183

Support and governance costs

9

Charity
2017
£

446,260

Supplementary Car Parking
Forage and Bedding

Group
2016
£

Expenditure on membership

Development costs
Prizes and awards
Depreciation/Gain on Sale
Support and governance costs

Group
2017
£

Group
2016
£

Charity
2017
£

Charity
2016
£

146,568

435,429

146,568

435,429

197,315

292,094

197,315

292,094

42,553

109,698

42,553

109,698

672,230

521,709

644,697

521,709

1,058,666

1,358,930

1,031,133

1,358,930
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10

Expenditure on other charitable activities

Group
2017
£

Group
2016
£

Charity
2017
£

Charity
2016
£

Unrestricted Funds
Payroll and related costs

410,008

376,605

410,008

376,605

Depreciation/Gain on Sale

120,252
-

120,564

120,252

120,564

-

556,277

198,318

381,935

341,408

976,824

761,807

912,195

838,577

2,063,361

1,457,294

Costs relating to subsidiary
Support and governance costs

Restricted Funds
Awards from Special Funds

11

Expenditure on trading activities
Payroll and related costs
Letting & contracting costs
Development costs
Depreciation/Gain on Sale
Support costs

12

Expenditure on Governance
Cost of AGM and other meetings
Audit Fees
Professional Fees
Key management salaries

13

Support costs and analysis of expenditure by activity
Society payroll
Professional fees
Estate costs
Vehicle costs
Rates
Insurance
Advertising and publicity
Printing, stationery and communications
Financial charges
Other costs
Governance costs

-

3,915

-

3,915

912,195

842,492

2,063,361

1,461,209

Group
2017
£

294,419
347,749
265,599
309,319
617,231

1,834,317
Group
2017
£

146,479
22,443
31,767
122,808

323,497
Group
2017
£

483,759
187,025
830,924
19,003
115,262
163,547
240,262
71,287
59,989
211,017
323,497

Group
2016
£

376,624
243,708
8,150
204,033
547,153

Charity
2017
£

1,379,668
Group
2016
£

189,136
34,750
21,175
132,548

377,609
Group
2016
£

447,045
96,728
680,572
20,923
86,051
159,113
209,351
65,366
52,258
144,412
377,609

-

Charity
2016
£

Charity
2017
£

144,034
17,794
29,767
122,808

314,403
Charity
2017
£

483,759
188,325
830,924
17,655
115,262
163,547
181,806
68,190
52,830
176,073
314,403

-

Charity
2016
£

189,136
28,250
27,675
132,548

377,609
Charity
2016
£

447,045
84,918
680,572
15,742
86,051
159,113
136,263
56,121
43,165
128,643
377,609

2,705,572

2,339,428

2,592,774

2,215,242

28,667

48,000

28,667

48,000

1,005,509

883,726

942,586

883,726

617,231

544,585

-

-

Membership

672,230

521,709

644,697

521,709

Other

381,935

341,408

976,824

761,807

2,705,572

2,339,428

2,592,774

2,215,242

Support costs have been allocated as follows:
Cost of raising funds
Show related activities
Trading activities

The Society initially identifies the costs of its support functions. It then identifies those costs which relate to its governance
function. Having identified its governance costs, the remaining support costs together with the governance costs are
apportioned between the main charitable and trading activities. The costs have been allocated on the basis of staff time
spent on each activity. (see note 7)
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Staff Costs
2017

2016

£

£

1,253,267

1,292,690

Social Security Costs

145,063

135,784

Pension Costs

186,058

189,665

1,584,388

1,618,139

Fundraising Activities

28,667

48,000

Show related activities

387,168

385,078

Trading activities

408,192

476,385

113,773

99,761

Other

523,780

476,367

Governance

122,808

132,548

1,584,388

1,618,139

Wages & Salaries

These have been allocated as follows:

Membership

The monthly average number of employees during the year was 41 (2016: 41) of which 37 were full-time
and 4 were temporary (2016: 37 were full-time and 4 were temporary).
The split by activity is:
2017

2016

No.

No.

Fundraising

1

1

Show related activities

11

11

Trading Activities

11

11

Membership

3

4

Other

11

11

Governance

4

3

The number of employees where salaries (including benefits in kind) were above £60,000 for the year were:

2017

2016

No.

No.

Between £120,000 - £129,999

1

-

Between £100,000 - £109,999

-

1

Between £70,000 - £79,999

-

2

Between £60,000 - £69,999

2

1

The contribution towards Pension Costs for employees where salaries were above £60,000 for the year
ended 30 November 2017 was £23,400 (2016: £29,600). Retirement benefits for these employees were
accruing under a defined contribution scheme.
Key Management personnel for the Group and the Charity are the same and comprise the Chief Executive, Finance Manager
and Society Secretary. The total employee benefits of the Key Management personnel are £245,600 (2016: £265,100). The
highest paid salary for the year was £117,000. This year has seen a change in key personnel resulting in some roles being
unfilled for a large part of the year.
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Trustees' Expenses and Remuneration
a) Trustees' expenses reimbursed
2017

2016

£

£

Directors' expense claims for attending internal and external meetings

25,160

34,400

Directors' expense claims for attending the Royal Highland Show

32,518

35,400

The aggregate amount of expenses reimbursed to Directors was:

b) Trustees' Remuneration
In addition to the expenses reimbursed above, the following Trustees were paid for consultancy services*:
Mr AK Brooke £6,475 (2016: £8,500), Mr WL Gill £1,600 (2016: £6,450), Mr AK Sutherland £225
(2016: £NIL), Sir ID Grant £1,300 (2016: £1,200), Mrs A Logan £900 (2016: £NIL) Mr K Campbell £300
(2016: £NIL), Mr M Hall £1,000 (2016: £1,100), Mr AJ Murray £2,200 (2016: £7,000)
* The legal authority under which these payments are made is stated within the Society Bye-Laws. Note
14b states that members of the Executive Committee may be paid for attendance at each meeting of the
Executive Committee, such sum as shall be determined from time to time by the Board of Directors.
16

Auditor's Remuneration
2017

2016

£

£

Audit services

22,443

34,750

Non Audit services

6,467

8,300

In 2016, auditor remuneration included one off costs, in relation to the audit of the charity’s conversion to FRS102.
17

Grants Paid
Cash grants were paid to the following bodies during the year:
2017

2016

£
Moredun Foundation
Royal Highland Education Trust
Scottish Shearing Circuit Committee
Lantra
Oxford Farming Conference

£
-

1,000

150,656

241,113

1,100

8,000

2,042

500

885

Chairman's Award

-

1,000

Nuffield Scholarship

-

6,000

Glasgow and Edinburgh Veterinary Schools

6,000

-

Grant to attend RASC Next Generation Mission in South Africa

2,538

-

14,000

15,000

RSABI

-

2,000

Various Countryside Initiatives

Commonwealth Agricultural Conference Singapore

5,000

7,290

Scottish Farriery Team

2,000

2,600

Others - Miscellaneous

1,250

1,200

185,471

285,703

Expenditure on certificates and medals for long service,
skills and academic achievement was as follows:
2017

2016

£
Long Service Certificates and Ploughing Medals

£
6,325

4,113

University Medals

1,329

2,278

7,654

6,391

Total Grants Paid

193,125

292,094

18

2,761,918

As at 30 November 2016

4,440,202

8,340,414

3,279,269

500,714

2,778,555

11,619,683

7,218,757

4,400,926

£

Ingliston
Showsite

4,440,202

8,340,414

3,279,269

500,714

2,778,555

11,619,683

7,218,757

4,400,926

£

Ingliston
Showsite

500,286

707,324

-

-

707,324

(262,623)

469,661

500,286

£

Assets under
Construction

500,286

707,324

707,324

(262,623)

469,661

500,286

£

Assets under
Construction

3,990,855

3,851,633

2,372,183

139,222

2,232,961

6,223,816

6,223,816

£

Exhibition
Hall

3,990,855

3,851,633

2,372,183

139,222

2,232,961

6,223,816

-

6,223,816

£

Exhibition
Hall

29,639

£

169,010

159,273

310,855

39,376

271,479

470,128

440,489
29,639

Show
Equipment

169,010

159,273

310,855

39,376

271,479

470,128

-

440,489

£

Show
Equipment

Works of art and items of historical interest are not recognised, since reliable cost information is not available for items
acquired many years ago and significant costs are involved in arriving at valuations.

2,758,418

-

2,758,418

(3,500)

2,761,918

£

As at 30 November 2017

Net Book Value

As at 30 November 2017

Charge for year

Disposals

As at 30 November 2016

Depreciation

As at 30 November 2017

Revaluation

Transfers

Disposals

Additions

As at 30 November 2016

Cost

Ingliston
Showground

2,761,918

As at 30 November 2016

Charity Fixed Assets

2,758,418

(3,500)

2,758,418

2,761,918

£

Ingliston
Showground

As at 30 November 2017

Net Book Value

As at 30 November 2017

Charge for year

Disposals

As at 1 December 2016

Depreciation

As at 30 November 2017

Transfer to investment property 19

Disposals

Additions

As at 30 November 2016

Cost

Group Fixed Assets

113,852

110,879

653,692

587,616

510,095

176,952

(52,102)

385,245

1,097,711

(52,105)

1,038,937

£

Plant

662,092

593,995

536,716

181,946

(52,102)

406,872

1,130,711

(52,105)

1,068,964

£

Plant

69,427

£

74,733

59,913

322,312

63,001

(578)

259,889

382,225

(824)

334,622

48,427

Office
Equipment

111,778

104,310

374,192

76,649

(578)

298,121

478,502

(824)

409,899

£

Office
Equipment

17,161

17,840

60,969

4,285

-

56,684

78,809

-

4,964

73,845

17,161

17,840

60,969

4,285

56,684

78,809

4,964

73,845

Furniture,
Paintings
£

£

Furniture,
Paintings

1

16,201

10,499

4,500

5,999

26,700

(1,800)

6,000

22,500

2

16,202

29,649

4,500

-

25,149

45,851

(1,800)

25,151

22,500

Motor
Vehicles
£

£

Motor
Vehicles

5,110,969

12,607,858

16,498,632

6,866,182

928,050

(52,680)

5,990,812

23,364,814

-

(3,500)

(317,352)

5,086,996

18,598,670

£

Total

12,653,304

16,549,409

6,963,833

946,692

(52,680)

6,069,821

23,513,242

(3,500)

(317,352)

18,723,125

£

Total
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Group Fixed Assets - Investment Properties
2017
£
Group

2017
£
Charity

2016
£
Group

2016
£
Charity

Cost
As at 30 November 2016

-

-

Additions

-

-

Disposals

-

-

Transfers from heritable property

3,500

3,500

-

-

Revaluation

3,696,500

3,696,500

-

-

-

-

-

-

As at 30 November 2017

3,700,000

3,700,000

-

-

Due to the signing of an agreement to lease land owned by the Society for the construction of a hotel, the land leased
as part of the arrangement has been accordingly reclassified as an investment property. The investment property was
valued at £3,700,000 as at 30 November 2017 by an independent surveyor, Derek Reid MRICS, an RICS-qualified valuer
with GVA. The basis of valuation was fair value, referenced to market value based on the value of the agreed lease.
20

Investments
2017
£
Group
Listed investments
Investments in Special Funds

2016
£
Group

2016
£
Charity

254,145

-

1,213,022

-

118,707

118,707

109,943

109,943

214,312

214,312

214,312

214,312

587,164

333,119

1,537,277

324,355

Investment in subsidiaries
Other investments

2017
£
Charity

100

100

Listed investments
Listed investments are held solely by the Royal Highland Development Trust a subsidiary of
Royal Highland and Agricultural Society of Scotland. Investments are included at fair value, their
market value, and are held primarily to provide an investment return for the Trust.
Holdings in common investment funds, unit trusts, open-ended investment companies and investments with
collective investments in transferable securities schemes were valued by the Trust's investment manager as
detailed below. Asset sales and purchases are recognised at the date of trade at cost (that is their transaction
value). Gains or losses on sale of investments are accounted for in the Statement of Financial Activities.
2017
£

2016
£

Investments
Market value at 1 December 2016
Additions at cost
Disposals at current value
Unrealised (losses)/gains on investments
Market value at 30 November 2017
excluding portfolio cash
Portfolio cash held pending reinvestment
Market value at 30 November 2017
including portfolio cash

1,207,600

1,081,287

87,427

84,171

(1,069,784)

(36,658)

19,326

78,800

244,569

1,207,600

9,576

5,422

254,145

1,213,022

2017

2016

209,224

1,149,229

Market Value at 30 November 2016
Equities
Securities
Market value at 30 November 2017
excluding portfolio cash
Portfolio cash held pending reinvestment
Market value at 30 November 2017
including portfolio cash

35,345

58,371

244,569

1,207,600

9,576

5,422

254,145

1,213,022
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Investments in special funds
Investments in special funds are investments which are held within restricted funds to provide an
income to facilitate the specific purposes of the fund. During 2016 a total of £600 was received
and subsequently invested in M&G Charifund Income Units for Trophy Maintenance.
Consolidated Investments

Units

Special Funds:

Cost

Market
Value
2017

Market
Value
2016

£

£

£

AJ Lilburn Forestry Trophy Fund
M&G Charifund Income Units

87

500

1,396

1,284

Consolidated Prize Fund
M&G Charifund Income Units

1,244

8,032

19,965

18,356

2.5% Treasury Stock 2024

1,500

5,047

5,457

5,419

5,000

5,000

5,000

4186

46,000

67,184

61,768

1,228

10,240

19,705

18,116

74,819

118,707

109,943

Sir William Young Memorial Fund
National Savings Bond
Council for Awards of Royal Agricultural
Societies(CARAS)
M&G Charifund Income Units
Trophy Maintenance Fund
M&G Charifund Income Units
Royal Highland Society Development Trust

Charity Investments

Units

Cost

Market
Value
2017

Market
Value
2016

£

£

£

Special Funds:
AJ Lilburn Forestry Trophy Fund
M&G Charifund Income Units

87

500

1,396

1,284

Consolidated Prize Fund
M&G Charifund Income Units

1,244

7,432

19,965

18,356

2.5% Treasury Stock 2024

1,500

5,047

5,457

5,419

5,000

5,000

5,000

4186

46,000

67,184

61,768

1,228

10,840

19,705

18,116

74,819

118,707

109,943

Sir William Young Memorial Fund
National Savings Bond
Council for Awards of Royal Agricultural
Societies(CARAS)
M&G Charifund Income Units
Trophy Maintenance Fund
M&G Charifund Income Units

Other Investments
The Society holds 3/7ths of the issued share capital of Scottish Agricultural & Rural Development Centre Ltd (SARDC). This
investment is carried at a cost of £214,286. The value of the investment is considered to be at least equivalent to cost. The
net assets of SARDC at 28 February 2017 were £1,316,001 and the profit for the year was £90,797 (2016: Profit of £83,238)
A dividend of £12,857 was received from SARDC during the year. (2016: £12,587)
The Society's shareholding in Tay Forth Machinery Ring Ltd is 25 shares of £1 each.
Investment in subsidiaries
Highland Centre Ltd
The Society has a £100 investment in Highland Centre Limited. Highland Centre Limited is a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Society with an authorised share capital of £1,000,000.
Edinburgh Arena Limited
The Society owns the entire Share Capital of Edinburgh Arena Limited. This
company is dormant and trading has not commenced.
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Debtors and Prepayments

Trade Debtors
Amount due from subsidiary undertaking
Prepayments
Other Debtors
22

Creditors and Accrued Charges

Trade Creditors
Accruals
Deferred income - deposits for events paid in advance
Social Security and other taxes
Bank loan due in 2017/2018
Deferred income - capital contribution to asset
under construction (see note below)
Other Creditors

2017
£
Group
344,910
275,018
54,200
674,128

2017
£
Charity
197,026
24,288
236,501
54,200
512,015

2016
£
Group
380,978
151,777
109,860
642,615

2016
£
Charity
300,276
40,141
122,619
109,860
572,896

2017
£
Group
671,482
480,953
110,304
274,698
100,000
1,500,000

2017
£
Charity
615,516
442,278
17,002
203,196
100,000
1,500,000

2016
£
Group
709,538
581,613
154,361
74,104

2016
£
Charity
688,666
543,697
28,101
35,680

20,432
3,157,869

3,202
2,881,194

1,519,616

1,296,144

The deferred income of £1,500,000 will be released as the conditions attached to the grant have been met on completion of
construction. Any remaining surplus over the capital costs will be released to income over the useful life of the asset. Deposits
for future events are released as the event occurs.
23

Bank Loans

Due in less than one year
Due in more than one year

2017
£
Group
100,000
1,900,000
2,000,000

2017
£
Charity
100,000
1,900,000
2,000,000

2016
£
Group

2016
£
Charity

The Society has agreed a loan agreement facility of £5m with RBS to fund infrastructure works at the Society’s premises. At the
balance sheet date, £2m has been borrowed, repayable over 10 years at a fixed rate. The loan is secured over certain of the
Society’s assets and is subject to property covenants relating to the value of these assets and finanical covenants relating to
the ability of the Society to service the loan.
24

Unrestricted Funds
The capital account consists of unrestricted funds which are available for use at the discretion of the Trustees in furtherance
of the general objectives of the society.
Designated funds are unrestricted funds earmarked by the Trustees for specific future purposes.

Capital Account
Designated Funds
Capital Account
This represents the net surpluses and deficits accumulated on the operations of the Society.

As at 1 December 2016
Surplus for year
Actuarial Gains
As at 30 November 2017
Designated Funds

Paintings Restoration Fund
Stockmen's Facilities

£
Group
18,358,493
95,125
18,453,618

£
Charity
18,019,387
5,125
18,024,512

2017
£
Group
14,782,662
3,597,831
(22,000)
3,575,832
18,358,493

2017
£
Charity
12,493,387
5,548,000
(22,000)
5,526,001
18,019,387

2016
£
Group
14,548,074
258,588
(24,000)
234,588
14,782,662

2016
£
Charity
12,426,880
90,507
(24,000)
66,507
12,493,387

2017
£
Group

2017
£
Charity

2016
£
Group

2016
£
Charity

5,125
90,000
95,125

5,125
5,125

5,125
90,000
95,125

There has been no movement in these funds for year ended 30 November 2017 (2016: Nil movement). The painting restoration
fund has been designated for the maintenance and restoration of paintings and other ephemera owned by the Society.
The funds set aside for stockmen's facilities have been designated to provide for future capital expenditure on stockmen's'
accommodation or facilities. Management is in the process of confirming the timeframe in which the funds will be drawn down.

5,125
5,125
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Special Restricted Funds
Balance

Incoming
resources

Resources
expended

Gains/
(losses)

Balance

2016

-

-

-

2017

AJ Lilburn Forestry Trophy Fund

1,284

-

-

113

1,397

Sir William Young Memorial Fund

5,817

44

-

-

5,861

24,034

1,012

-

1,647

26,693

18,116

-

-

1,589

19,705

69,884

2,314

-

5,416

77,614

119,135

3,370

8,765

131,270

Consolidated Prize Fund
Trophy Maintenance Fund
Council of Awards for Royal Agricultural Societies

AJ Lilburn Forestry Trophy Fund
The AJ Lilburn Forestry Trophy Fund is a restricted fund for the maintenance of the Alistair J Lilburn of Coull Trophy.
Sir William Young Memorial Fund
The Sir William Young Memorial Fund is a restricted fund for the annual award of a cash sum to the person considered by the
Society's Directors to have made an outstanding contribution to livestock breeding in Scotland.
2017
£
National Savings Bond (1 March 1984)

2016
£

5,000

Gold Deposit Account with the Royal Bank of Scotland

5,000

861

817

5,861

5,817

Consolidated Prize Fund
The Consolidated Prize Fund was created on 12 August 1987 by realising the individual investments held by the Prize Fund and
amalgamating them into government stock and Charifund Income Units. The investment income and awards are distributed
according to the ratio of each individual prize funds contribution to the total funds applied to the new investments, thus
retaining the restricted nature of the individual prize funds. Awards are distributed annually in July and represent for this
financial year the receipts for the period 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2017. Receipts from 1 July 2017 to 30 November 2017 are carried
forward for distribution the following year.
2017
£

2016
£

M&G Charifund Income Units

19,705

18,356

2.5% Treasury Stock 2024

5,457

5,419

275

259

25,437

24,034

Savings Account (dividends c/f to next distribution)

Trophy Maintenance Fund
Since 1989 donors of new trophies have been required
to supply a cash sum to purchase M&G Charifund
Income Units to provide for Trophy Maintenance Costs.
2017
£
M&G Charifund Income Units

19,705

2016
£
18,116

Council for Awards of Royal Agricultural Societies
(CARAS)
In 2013 a fund was set up, from donations made by members of the Council for Awards of Royal Agricultural Societies (CARAS).
The funds collected were used to purchase M&G Charifund Income Units. The monies earned from dividends received, fund an
annual awards scheme that grants funding to candidates who have limited access to other forms of funding.
2017
£
M&G Charifund Income Units
Cash

67,184

2016
£
61,767

10,431

8,117

77,615

69,884
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Reconciliation of Surplus for year to net cash
inflow from operating activities

Net income

2017

2016

£

£

(234,323)

178,199

Pension fund charge less contributions made

(22,000)

(24,000)

Depreciation

946,690

758,818

(Gain)/loss on sales and disposals of fixed assets

(22,252)

67,654

Interest and dividend receivable

(46,257)

(67,365)

-

-

(Increase)/decrease in stock

(16,731)

3,377

Decrease/(increase) in debtors and prepayments

(31,513)

(4,896)

1,638,253

106,535

254,748

557,243

(9,416)

-

2,457,199

1,575,565

Loan Interest

Increase/(decrease) in creditors and accrued charges
Professional fees written off
Tax paid

27

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
2016
Bank

Cash Flow

2017

1,667,491

427,286

2,094,777

Fund bank accounts

9,193

3,370

12,563

Cash

1,500

1,327

2,827

1,678,184

431,983

2,110,167
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Analysis of net assets between funds
Group

Unrestricted Funds

Tangible
Fixed Assets

Investments

20,249,410

468,457

(364,249)

(1,900,000)

18,453,618

-

118,707

12,563

-

131,270

20,249,410

587,164

(351,686)

(1,900,000)

18,584,888

Tangible
Fixed Assets

Investments

20,198,632

214,412

(488,532)

(1,900,000)

18,024,512

-

118,707

12,563

-

131,270

20,198,632

333,119

(475,969)

(1,900,000)

18,155,782

Restricted Funds
Total

Net Current
Liabilities

Long Term
Liabilities

Total

Charity

Unrestricted Funds
Restricted Funds
Total

29

Net Current
Assets

Long Term
Liabilities

Total

Operating Leases
2017

2016

£

£

The Annual Commitment under non-cancellable operating leases was as follows:
Operating Leases expiring:
Within one year
- Plant & Machinery

25,155

28,737

12,496

37,911

37,651

66,648

Within two to five years
- Plant & Machinery
Total commitment for the life of all leases
- Plant & Machinery

30

Capital Commitments
2017
£

2016
£

As at the 30 November 2017, the group and charity had capital commitments as follows:
Contracted for but not provided in the financial statements

31

-

43,786

Related Party Transactions
During the year the Charity entered into transactions, in the ordinary course of business, with other related parties.
Transactions entered into, and trading balances outstanding at 30 November 2017 are as follows:
Related Party

Related
Directors

Sales to
Related Party

Dividend
Received

Scottish Agricultural
& Rural Development
Centre Ltd

2017 A Laidlaw, AJ Murray

£15,770

£12,857

2016 A Laidlaw, AK Brooke

£17,585

£12,857

The Charity has a 43% interest in SARDC Ltd. RHASS provides security services for SARDC. Included within sales to SARDC are
fees of £2,000 in respect of provision of Directors for the company, which are paid directly to the Charity.
The Charity has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS8 not to disclose transactions with wholly owned subsidiaries.
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Connected Bodies
The Royal Highland Education Trust (Scottish Charity Number SC7492) is administered by the Society. No fee is charged for this
service
The Roy Watherston Memorial Trust (Scottish Charity Number SC7609) is administered by the Society. No fee is charged for
this service.
The Royal Highland Society Development Trust was established on 16 November 1995 under Deed of Trust. It is a charitable
trust (Scottish Charity Number SC24206) and has five trustees in common with RHASS.
The address of the Royal Highland Education Trust, the Roy Watherston Memorial Trust, and the Royal Highland Society
Development Trust is Royal Highland Centre, Ingliston, Edinburgh EH28 8NB
The Royal Agricultural Society of the Commonwealth (Charity Number 1101337) is administered by the Society. A fee of £21,000 is
charged for this service.
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Pension Scheme
The Society operates a defined benefit scheme in the UK. This is a separate trustee administered fund holding the pension
scheme assets to meet long term pension liabilities. A full actuarial valuation was carried out at 30 November 2017 by a qualified
actuary, independent of the scheme's sponsoring employer. The major assumptions used by the actuary are shown below.
The most recent actuarial valuation as at 30 November 2014 showed a surplus of £649,000. The Society has agreed with
trustees that it will pay three additional contributions each of £50,000, payable by 31 January 2016, 31 January 2017 and 31
January 2018, in order to improve the funding of the scheme on the solvency valuation basis. In addition, the Society will also
pay annual contributions of £50,000 in respect of expenses and will reimburse the scheme for all Pension Protection Fund
levies. The next full actuarial valuation will be carried out as at 30 November 2017.
Present value of defined benefit obligation, fair value of assets and defined benefit asset (Liability)
%
Fair value of plan assets

2017
£

%

2016
£

%

2015
£

5,613,000

5,664,000

4,948,000

4,340,000

4,514,000

3,916,000

Surplus in plan

1,273,000

1,150,000

1,032,000

Unrecognised Surplus

1,273,000

1,150,000

1,032,000

Present value of defined benefit obligation

Assets
Overseas equities

29%

1,655,000

29%

1,443,000

Corporate bonds

22%

1,229,000

14%

773,000

12%

599,000

Government bonds

61%

3,430,000

44%

2,498,000

44%

2,168,000

7%

328,000

Property
Cash

7%
3%

149,000

Other
Absolute return bond fund

14%

376,000

0%

28,000

2%

119,000

6%

334,000

6%

291,000

805,000
5,613,000

5,664,000

4,948,000

None of the fair values of the assets shown above include any direct investments in the Society's own financial instruments or
any property occupied by, or other assets used by the Society.
Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Balances of the Present Value Scheme Liabilities
2017
£
Defined benefit obligation at start of period

2016
£

2015
£

4,514,000

3,916,000

Expenses

80,000

95,000

79,000

Interest expense

126,000

139,000

140,000

Contributions by scheme participants
Actuarial losses/(gains)
Benefits paid and expenses
Scheme liabilities at end of period

3,889,000

-

-

-

34,000

583,000

(17,000)

(414,000)

(219,000)

(175,000)

4,340,000

4,514,000

3,916,000
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Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Balances of the Fair Value of Plan Assets
2017
£
Fair value of plan assets at start of period

2016
£

5,664,000

4,948,000

160,000

176,000

Actuarial gains /(losses)

101,000

640,000

Contributions by the Society

102,000

119,000

Interest Income

-

-

Benefits paid and expenses

Contribution by scheme participants

(414,000)

(219,000)

Fair value of plan assets at end of year

5,613,000

5,664,000

The actual return on the plan assets over the period ending 30 November 2017 was £261,000.
Defined Benefit Costs Recognised in Profit or Loss
2017
£
Expenses

2016
£

80,000

95,000

-

-

Net interest cost
Losses (gains) due to benefit changes
Total expense recognised in profit and loss

-

-

80,000

95,000

Return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest cost)
Gain/(loss)

101,000

640,000

Experience gains and losses arising on the scheme liabilities
Gain/(loss)

57,000

73,000

(91,000)

(656,000)

Effects of changes in the amount of surplus that is not
recoverable (excluding amounts included in net interest cost)
Gain/(loss)

(89,000)

(81,000)

Total amount recognised in statement of
total recognised gains and losses
Amount: Gain/(loss)

(22,000)

(24,000)

Effects of changes in the demographic
and financial assumptions underlying the
present value of the scheme liabilities:
Gain/(loss)

Assumptions
2017
% per annum

2016
% per annum

2015
% per annum

Discount rate

2.50

2.90

3.60

Inflation (CPI)

2.40

2.60

2.20

Allowance for revaluation of deferred
pensions of CPI or 5%pa, if less

2.40

2.60

2.20

Allowance for pension in payment increases of CPI or 5%pa, if less

2.30

2.50

2.10

Allowance for commutation of pension for cash at retirement

25% of Pension

25% of Pension

25% of Pension

The mortality assumptions adopted at 30th November 2016 imply the following life expectancies:
Male retiring at age 60 in 2017

25.40

25.70

25.50

Female retiring at age 60 in 2017

27.40

27.80

27.70

Male retiring at age 60 in 2037

27.40

27.90

27.80

Female retiring at age 60 in 2037

29.40

30.30

30.10

The best estimate of contributions to be paid by the Society to the scheme for the period commencing 1 December 2017 is
£100,000. This is in respect of management and administration expenses.
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